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The Warharn Williams House is nicely sited on a slight knoll and. 
angled to the Old Post Road rather than to the much later Middle- 
town Turnpike* The house is very imposing* The magnificent 
door-way with its broken-scroll pediment is outstanding. This 
type of door frame is mostly associated with the Connecticut Valley 
from Glastonbury to Deerfield, and it also appears in Salem and .V 
Portsmouth on some of the more elaborate mansions. The style is -j.-^" 
derived immediately from English architecture and has been caljLeti 
"Wren Baroque* 11 It calls to mind the bonnet-top highboys popular - ''  
in the Queen Anne and Chippendale periods , which reflect the! -same ', ">v. 
desire to avoid a static horizontal and give life to the patitBrn 
of the facade. The scrolls terminate in rosettes, which alsV'i'A 
appear in simpler form above the fluted pilasters. These " 
Roses" were as popular in furniture and architecture as in 
oT'this Deriod. " i ',

IOver the years the house has had to be partially resided, ' so the 
original beaded clapboards, graduated in size, survive only on the 
front and north sides. Old photographs of the house show shutters 
on all the windows but these have been removed, quite properly, 
as they would not have been used in the l'/50 ! s. Although the house 
has been painted white for many years, it was not so originally. 
Underneath a t least seven layers of white paint is a rich pumpkin 
yellow, appearing on both clapboards and trim. T.lhite paint did not 
come into general use until after the Revolution,

Another striking feature of the design is the very steep pitch of the 
roof, and the unusual treatment of carrying the cornice across the 
gaBle cyids, This cornice style was uncommon until after 1800, and 
then used with roofs of much lower pitch.

The gambrel-roof ed ell at the rear was not built at the sane time as 
the house, but probably was added Shortly thereafter, as that type 
of roof was not in fashion long. Since the inventory taken after 
Warhan »"»f illianis ' death lists the "Dwelling house and wash room ad­ 
joining," it is possible that the ell was the "wash room," and that 
later on it was converted into a kitchen.

The two-leaf front door, with no window lights above it, leads into 
a small hallway with large square rooms to the right and left in the 
typical center-chimney house plan. The woodwork around the stairs 
is simple rectilinear paneling. The stairs are "closed-string" style,
so the step-ends do not show. The balusters are delicately and 
elegantly turned with a rather attenuated profile. A half baluster is 
set against each side of the upper newel posts. The bottom newel 
is turned which is quite a rare treatment.

In the south parlor, as throughout the house, the corner posts, girts, 
and summer beam are all exposed and cased. There is a compound crown 
molding making the transition from the girts to the plastered ceiling,
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Description of the V/arham Williams House

again showing an interest in the interplay of light and shadow. The 
fireplace in the room is of later date and is surrounded with old 
blue Delft tiles, some being replacements.

The north parlor is the glory of the house. The bottom side (or 
soffit) of the summer beam is very unusual and gives an interesting 
effect as it is paneled. The whole chimney wall is paneled, with 
fluted pilasters going from floor to ceiling on either side of the ̂ _, 
fireplace. The mantel shelf is supported by compound moldings /<</> \ 
several inches deep, giving a great feeling of strength and 
the bolection molding around the opening. Above the mantel 
great fielded panel of one piece of wood, 21 by 53 inches, 
by finer moldings. Also in this room is a corner cupboard oj£&ginal ( 
to the house with a round-headed glazed door and nicely balanced "& % 
paneling on the doors below. V-^ /]"]/Wr

X fa *$** 
Kost interesting of all in this very handsome room, mulberry- ^^/} ;
colored Delft tiles illustrating Biblical scenes surround the fire^-'Q. 
place. Since this room was the "Best Parlor," it may not have 
been Kr, V/illiam 1 s study, but those tiles certainly could have 
given him many themes for sermons. There are twenty tiles and origin­ 
ally there probably were four more. The subjects range from the 
Judgement of Solomon, Zacchaeus up in his "Sycomore Tree," to St. 
Paul being dropped over Damascus walls in a basket. Kost surprising 
is the Annunciation with a bare-breasted Madonna.

Behind this parlor are the rear stairs and a little room in the 
cold northeast corner which would have been a pantry or buttery. 
The old kitchen is across the center back of the house. Typical of 
many houses, the walls here are bevel-and-bead, or feather-edge, 
boarding. Plaster was much more expensive than wood and was saved 
for the best rooms. Over the fireplace is a nicely balanced arrange­ 
ment of rectangular panels.

The partitions between this kitchen and the south parlor were removed. 
Originally the large kitchen area would have been broken up to 
include a small bedroom in the southeast corner. Back of this is the 
ell, of one large room with- a fireplace on the east side and a 
small room beyond, A narrow flight of stairs leads to the attic 
which may have been quarters for a slave.

In the main part of the house, the two large upstairs front rooms 
also have fine paneling on the chimney walls with even larger over­ 
mantel boards than downstairs, and beautifully bold bolection 
moldings around the fireplaces. Rather surprisingly the hearths are 
raised above floor level. This usually indicated that originally 
the ceiling beneath was open beamed and unplastered, but in a house
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Description of the Warhain Williams House

of this date and. style, the ceilings certainly would have been 
plastered.

Also upstairs is one of the most fascinating aspects of this house. 
It was known for a long tine that inside a closet door was a list 
of people who had painted the house, with the earliest entry being 
1792 and the most recent, 1900. However, it was not until Kr. and 
Krs. Schaeffer started to restore the house in 1943 that the full 
importance of this list was realized.

In removing the layer upon layer of wallpaper in the "Parlor Chamber" 
(that is, the room over the"Best Parlor"), the Schaeffers discovered 
painting on the walls. It is free-hand painting, rather than the 
later stenciling. The background is a bright blue, over which is 
drawn a diamond design formed by a running vine of small feather- 
like leaves. Within each diamond is a flower sprsy in red, blue, 
and mustard, with green leaves.

This description has been taken from an article on the Warham 
Williams House, "Warhara Williams: A Country Parson and his
Northford Home," by Elizabeth A. Livingston which appeared in 

the Journal of the New Haven Colony Historical Society, Vol. 18, 
No. 3, September 1969.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Underscoring the architectural importance of the
House £tre studies recorded in 1916 in the Old Houses of
compiled by the Colonial Dames for the Connecticut State Library,
in 1937 in the Historic American Buildings Survey for the Library
of Congress, as well as in the WPA Census of Old Buildings in 0on-
necticut and numerous architectural guidebooks.

Of particular interest is the freehand painting on a bright blue 
background in the parlor chamber. Because the blue of the wall 
matches best the blue paint of the signature of Jared Jessup in 
1809, this room is ascribed to him. The combination of Jessup 1 s 
painting and dated signature is of great importance because it 
provides identification for at least eight other houses in Connecti­ 
cut and llassachusetts.

The doorway of the house with its broken scroll pediment has an 
interesting similarity to that of the so-called Reverend John 
Williams House in Deerfield, Massachusetts (actually built in 
1754 by the merchant sonc of John Williams). However, careful 
comparison of the two doorways reveals that they could not have 
been done by the same joiner.

The house is significant also for its association with Warham 
Williams, son of a .well-known and prosperous family, first 
pastor of the Third Ecclesiastical Society of Branford, and 
friend of Ezra Stiles who became president of Yale in 1778.

"Warham Williams: A Country Parson and his Northford Home," 
by Elizabeth A. Livingston in New Haven Colony Historical Society 
Journal, Volume 18, No. 3 (September, 1969) p.6?.
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